ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 23, 2001
3:25 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lisa Miurkowski, Chair
Representative Andrew Hal cro, Vice Chair
Representati ve Kevin Meyer
Representati ve Pete Kott

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Joe Hayes

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 37(FIN)

"An Act relating to collective negotiation by conpeting
physicians with health benefit plans, to health benefit plan
contracts, to the application of antitrust laws to agreenents
involving providers and groups of providers affected by
collective negotiations, and to the effect of the collective
negoti ati on provi sions on heal thcare providers."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 106

"An Act relating to the authorizations for state financial
institutions; relating to confidential financial records of
depositors and custoners of certain financial institutions;
relating to the Al aska Banking Code, Mitual Savings Bank Act,
Alaska Small Loans Act, and Alaska Credit Union Act; and
providing for an effective date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI OUS ACTI ON

BILL: SB 37

SHORT TI TLE: PHYSI CI AN NEGOTI ATI ONS W TH HEALTH | NSURE
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) KELLY

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- April 23, 2001



01/12/01

01/12/01
01/ 22/ 01
01/ 22/ 01
01/ 22/ 01
01/ 22/ 01
02/ 21/ 01
02/ 21/ 01

02/ 21/ 01
02/ 22/ 01
02/ 22/ 01

02/ 22/ 01
02/ 22/ 01
02/ 22/ 01
02/ 22/ 01
02/ 22/ 01
03/01/01
03/01/01
03/01/01
03/ 08/ 01
03/ 08/ 01
03/ 08/ 01
03/13/01
03/13/01

03/13/01
03/ 14/ 01
03/ 14/ 01

03/ 14/ 01
03/ 14/ 01
03/ 14/ 01
03/ 14/ 01
03/ 14/ 01
03/ 28/ 01

03/ 28/ 01
03/ 28/ 01

03/ 28/ 01
03/ 28/ 01

03/ 28/ 01
03/ 29/ 01

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE

0073

0073
0137

0467
0467

0467
0467
0467
0467
0467

0653
0653

0653
0653
0653
0653
0653

0853

(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S

(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)

(S)
(S)

READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

JUD, FIN

L&C REFERRAL ADDED AFTER JUD
JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211
Moved CS(JUD) CQut of
Commttee

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD RPT CS 2DNP 3NR NEW TI TLE
NR: TAYLOR, CONDERY,

THERRI AULT;

DNP: ELLIS, DONLEY

FN1: (LAW

FN2: ( CED)

FN3: | NDETERM NATE( ADM)

FN4: ZERQ( HSS)

L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( L&C)

L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( L&C)

L&C AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211
Moved CS(L&C) CQut of

Comm ttee

M NUTE( L&C)

L&C RPT CS 2DP 3NR NEW TI TLE
NR: PHI LLI PS, DAVI S,
TORGERSON,;

DP: AUSTERVAN, LEMAN

FN1: (LAW

FN2: (CED)

FN3: | NDETERM NATE( ADM

FNA:  ZERQ( HSS)

FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532

Heard & Hel d

FIN AT 6: 00 PM SENATE FI NANCE
532

Moved CS(FIN) Qut of

Comm ttee

M NUTE( FI N)

M NUTE( FI N)

FIN RPT CS 3DP 1DNP 4NR NEW

April 23, 2001



TI TLE

03/ 29/ 01 0853 (S) DP: KELLY, WLKEN, LEMAN;

03/ 29/ 01 0853 (S) NR. DONLEY, AUSTERMAN, OLSON,
GREEN:;

03/ 29/ 01 0853 (S) DNP:  HOFFMAN

03/ 29/ 01 0853 (S) FNL: (LAW

03/ 29/ 01 0854 (S) FN2: ( CED)

03/ 29/ 01 0854 (S) FN4:  ZERQ( HSS)

03/ 29/ 01 0854 (S) FN5: ZERO('S. FI N ADM)

04/ 04/ 01 0932 (S) RULES TO CALENDAR 10R 4/ 4/ 01

04/ 04/ 01 0933 (S) READ THE SECOND TI ME

04/ 04/ 01 0933 (S) FIN CS ADOPTED UNAN CONSENT

04/ 04/ 01 0933 (S) ADVANCED TO THI RD READI NG
UNAN CONSENT

04/ 04/ 01 0933 (S) READ THE THI RD TI ME CSSB
37(FIN)

04/ 04/ 01 0933 (S) PASSED Y13 N6 E1

04/ 04/ 01 0934 (S) ELLI S NOTI CE OF
RECONSI| DERATI ON

04/ 04/ 01 (S) RLS AT 10: 45 AM FAHRENKAMP
203

04/ 04/ 01 (S) M NUTE( RLS)

04/ 05/ 01 0961 (S) RECONS| DERATI ON NOT TAKEN UP

04/ 05/ 01 0962 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

04/ 05/ 01 0962 (S) VERSI ON:  CSSB 37(FI N)

04/ 06/ 01 0875 (H READ THE FIRST TIME -
REFERRALS

04/ 06/ 01 0875 (H) L&C, JUD, FIN

04/ 06/ 01 0875 (H REFERRED TO LABOR & COMVERCE

04/ 23/ 01 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

DAVE JOHNSON, Pedi atrician

Al aska State Medical Association

4107 Laurel Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99508

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the Al aska State
Medi cal Association on SB 37.

SENATOR PETE KELLY

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 518

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of SB 37.

JI M JORDAN, Executive Director

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- April 23, 2001



Al aska State Medical Association

4107 Laurel Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99508

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 37.

M CHAEL HAUGEN, Executive Director

Al aska Physi ci ans & Surgeons, Inc.

4120 Laurel Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99508

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 37.

LAURA WALDEN

Nul ai n Si st er hood

(No address provi ded)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 37.

CLYDE "ED' SN FFEN, Assistant Attorney Ceneral
Fair Busi ness Practices Section

Cvil Division (Anchorage)

Departnent of Law

1031 West 4th Avenue

Anchor age, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on SB 37.

BOB LOHR, Director

Di vision of |nsurance

Department of Comrunity and Econoni ¢ Devel opnent
3601 C Street

Anchor age, Al aska 99503

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 37.

KRI STOPHER KNAUSS, St af f

to Senator Pete Kelly

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 518

Juneau, Al aska 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the sponsor of SB
37.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-65, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR LISA MJRKOASKI called the House Labor and Commerce

Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 3:25 p.m Menber s
present at the call to order were Representatives Mirkowski,

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- April 23, 2001



Hal cro, Meyer, Crawford, and Hayes. Representatives Kott and
Rokeberg joined the neeting as it was in progress.

SB 37- PHYSI Cl AN NEGOTI ATI ONS W TH HEALTH | NSURE

CHAI R MURKOWBKI announced that the conmmttee would consider CS
FOR SENATE BILL NO 37(FIN), "An Act relating to collective
negotiati on by conpeting physicians with health benefit plans,
to health Dbenefit plan contracts, to the application of
antitrust laws to agreenents involving providers and groups of
provi ders affected by collective negotiations, and to the effect
of the collective negoti ati on provi si ons on heal t hcare
provi ders. "

CHAI R MJURKOASBKI called for an at-ease at 3:27 p.m The neeting
was called back to order at 3:28 p.m

Nunber 0234

DAVE JOHNSQON, Pediatrician, Alaska State Medical Association
(ASMA), cane forth and stated that [ASMA] woul d appreciate the
commttee's support for SB 37. [ The Al aska State Medical
Associ ation] believes the bill is inportant and is balanced with
many saf eguards.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked Dr. Johnson what he feels the
reason for this bill is. He asked whether the system is
presently breaking down, or whether this is sonmething for the
future.

DR. JOHNSON answered that he thinks this is filling a pressing
need. He stated that the insurance industry is consolidating
and will <continue to do so. In small comunities such as
Ket chi kan, switching from one insurance conpany to another can
quickly involve a large percentage of an enployer's practice.
He said physicians are barraged with things from insurance
conpani es, asking them to sign agreenents. Ri ght now, with the
way | egislation and the antitrust issues stand, physicians can't
di scuss the facts of situations like that with each other; they
are very "gun shy" about the Federal Trade Comm ssion. He said
he thinks that having an explicit and regul ated process would
give individual physicians the opportunity to talk anongst
t henmsel ves and then collectively with insurance conpanies wth
state oversight.

Nunber 0547

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- April 23, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO stated that sone physicians bill [the

patients'] insurance for them while others require that
[ patients] pay at the tinme of service. He referred to page 2,
AS 23.50.020, and asked Dr. Johnson whether the intent of the
bill is for physicians to get together and discuss pricing,

rei nbursenent, policies, and clai mdi sputes.

DR. JOHNSON responded that the list of things on page 2, lines
15 through 27, addresses sone of the issues. A common thing
physi cians discuss is what the definitions are of "standard
medi cal practice"” and of "reasonable and prudent person.” For
exanple, he said he had [a patient] who went to the hospital
W th chest pains. Fortunately, she didn't have a heart attack
however, the insurance conpany said it was not reasonable and
prudent to go to the energency room for chest pains, and that
she shoul d have waited and gone to the office another day. Wth
the issue of clinical guidelines - whether sonething is standard

medical practice or experinental - the insurance conpanies
choose their definitions of those things. For administrative
procedures, insurance conpanies try to set it up so [the

patient] be make referred to one physician but not to another
If there are econom c issues and fees, insurance conpanies right
now do that on a "take it or l|leave [it] basis.” This [bill]
woul d gi ve [physicians] the opportunity to talk about fees after
nonfee issues have been addressed in a voluntary negotiation
process.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked what would happen to those

physi ci ans who don't bill insurance carriers on behalf of their
patients. For exanple, if patients pay a physician cash for
their wvisits, that physician would still be allowed to

[participate in the negotiations] although they really don't
af fect the physician.

DR. JOHNSON  expl ained that there are two | evel s of
participating. A physician can sinply sign up as a courtesy to
patients and agree to provide billing services as part of his or
her service. Physicians are already required to do that for
Medi care and Medicaid patients. Some offices wll provide
billing services for all insurance conpanies, others wll bil

for primary but not for secondary, and others wll bill for
primary and secondary. That is different from signing up as a
speci al deal. | nsurance conpanies cone and say, "W provide
i nsurance for 5,000 people in your community, and if you sign up
with us, then you'll be on our list as a preferred provider, and
we'l | encourage people to go to you.”™ In exchange for that, the
i nsurance conpanies have requirenments of the providers. An

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- April 23, 2001



i ndi vidual physician, he said, may agree to be a participating
provider or not, but that's a separate issue beyond providing
billing services.

DR, JOHNSON renmarked that he thinks Representative Halcro was
tal king about when sonebody chooses to be a participating
physician with an insurance conpany. The good news with that is
[the insurance conpany] will prom se pronpt paynent and mnimze
the paperwork; the bad news is they typically ask for a
di scount, ask that [the physician] accept their fee as paynent

in full, and bind [the physician] to an agreenent for a finite
period of tine, often in excess of the time the [insurance
conpany] is bound to [the physician]. In those situations, he

said, it seens to be fairer for the physicians to be able to
talk with one another before talking with the insurance conpany.

Nunber 1010

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO stated that it is his understanding that
this bill allows for physicians to sit down in a room and say,
"XYZ Insurance cane to nme and gave ne a proposal, and | don't
think the ternms are that good. What do you think?" The
physi ci ans can then say, "W're not going to take this from XYZ
we' Il nmake them conme back to us with a better offer.”

DR. JOHNSON responded that that's not the bottom |ine, because
the bill limts the percentage of physicians in the comunity
that can get together

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO referred to page 3, line 21, which defines
that this can only be done with a conpany that has market power.
Blue Cross, he said, is the only one with any market power; it
has 54 percent of the nmarket, followed by its next conpetitor
whi ch has 5.3 percent. Basically, he said, this is only talking
about one provider.

DR. JOHNSON clarified that the nunbers Representative Halcro is
provi ding are statew de nunbers. A single major enployer in a
small comunity may have nore nmarket power than that. For
exanple, in Ketchikan, with several major enployers, a shift
from one insurer to another can give an individual insurance
conpany a substantial market share.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO renar ked that market power is not defined.

DR. JOHNSON replied that he thinks it is because it says [the
insurer] is presuned to have narket [power]. That can be

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- April 23, 2001



disproved if [the insurer] has less than 15 percent of the
mar ket [share] in that area.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked Dr. Johnson whether he is defining
mar ket power as market power in individual comrunities.

DR. JOHNSON answer ed, yes.
Nunmber 1226

CHAI R MURKOWSKI stated that it is her understanding that it was
not necessarily in individual communities but 1in geographic
service areas. She asked whether a "geographic service area"
can be defined as the whole state, a community, or the Interior.

DR. JOHNSON responded that if he were paying a fee to a third
party to negotiate, he would not be interested if an insurer was
not providing services to his practice. The practical effect of
the process's being financially self-sustaining is that it would
prevent people from attenpting to "nuscle" outside areas. He
noted right now the insurance conpani es have that power and that
i nterest.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI remarked that it's probably easier, for exanple,
in the Ketchikan area, while it mght be nore "nuddy" in
Sout hcentral [Al aska] where there is road access.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD stated that in his trade, when he

negoti ates an agreenent he does "pattern bargaining."” For
exanple, his conpany may only sign a contract with four steel
erectors, but every steel erector gets the sane deal. He asked

Dr. Johnson, when [a physician] signs this agreenent with his or
her major insurer, whether all the other smaller entities that
cone into his or her office wwuld be able to get the sane
contract.

Nunber 1474

DR. JOHNSON responded that as it stands right now, the answer is
no. He said he does not sign side deals wth insurance
conpani es. He explained that if he signs up for the federa
Medi care program Medicare allows 41 percent of his bill and
pays 34 percent; he collects 7 percent fromthe patient. That's
true whether the patient is "a multimllionaire on a cruise ship
or indigent Aunt Tilly (ph) that |'ve known and taken care of
for the whole tinme |I've been in Ketchikan.”" Medicaid, the state
f eder al part nership, has anot her fee schedule that i's

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- April 23, 2001



substantially higher than Medicare's. He stated that the third
|l evel of billing he does in his office is the same for
everybody. He added that there is a possibility under this bil
that the physicians will get together and agree on a side deal
wi th an insurance conpany. As it is now, he can't ask other
physicians in Ketchikan what they are doing because that is a
violation of antitrust [l|aws].

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD comented that he didn't realize that
this is not a collective bargaining bill

DR. JOHNSON stated that it's a collective bargaining bill with a
|l ot of constraints. It exenpts independent plans supervised
under ERI SA (Enpl oyee Retirenment and Income Security Act) and is
a voluntary process on both sides.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked whether this would allow for
[ physicians] to negotiate with sonebody col |l ectively.

DR JOHNSON answered that it woul d.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked Dr. Johnson with whom he would
negoti at e.

DR.  JOHNSON responded that he would [negotiate] with health
benefit plans that have a 15 percent or greater market share in
a defined area.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked Dr. Johnson, if he decided to
negotiate collectively with sone insurer, whether those people
not covered under Medicare or Mdicaid wuld be covered under
the "pattern,” or would have to negotiate with himon their own.

DR, JOHNSON answered that this doesn't disturb the current
situation in which each one "stands alone.” This would allow
negotiation with plans that have a significant market share.
Most plans, he stated, will have a clause in their agreenents
whereby the [physician] will provide services on the [insurance
conpany's] behalf at [the physician's] |owest rate.

Nunmber 1669

REPRESENTATI VE PETE KELLY, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of
SB 37, cane forth and addressed some of the previously asked
questi ons. He stated that what constitutes a geographic area
will be determned by the attorney general. If a group of
physi ci ans wants to get together, and only 30 percent of themin

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- April 23, 2001



that market can get together under a plan like this, they can
approach the attorney general once they have decided on a third

party to represent them At that point, they fall under
oversight of the Ofice of the Attorney Ceneral. The specifics
of what a market is will be the scope of the agreenent, and sone
of the discussions of the fees wll be determned by the
attorney general. He noted that the insurance conpany could
veto the whole idea from the beginning, because nothing in this
bill is mandatory. |If [the physicians] do get together and they
agree on the conditions, the attorney general could still veto
the negotiation. He added that this bill doesn't apply to
Medi caid and Medi care.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that in the bill it defines a
"geographic area" as consisting of 40 or fewer practicing
physi ci ans. He asked whether Juneau, Anchorage, and Fairbanks

woul d be the only communities that would qualify.

SENATOR KELLY answered that there probably would not be others,
but that would be determined by the Ofice of the Attorney
CGeneral when defining what a geographic area is. He added t hat
because this is voluntary, any conmunity in the state could
parti ci pate. However, he said, "Wiat we don't want to have is
for 100 percent of the physicians in Anchorage under a group
negotiating with an insurance conpany. That, to ne, gives
mar ket power too far the other way." In response to the
guestion about collective bargaining, he said this is not a
collective bargaining agreenent; this is strictly the ability
for negotiations within the terns of the State Action Doctrine

The [U. S.] Suprene Court realized there would be cases in which
the antitrust provisions wouldn't work well; rather than |et
them get out of hand on a case-by-case basis, however, [the U S
Suprene Court] made sure there was state oversight.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked, if a large insurance conpany
negotiates wth the doctors in Ketchikan but there are
individuals who are not covered under that 1insurance conpany,
whet her the agreenent would set a "pattern™ for individuals
Wi t hout i nsurance.

SENATOR KELLY responded that nothing in the bill creates that or
requires that. In the overall question of people negotiating,
there may be changes in denmand, but that would be indirect.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD stated that wth [his conpany's]
collective bargaining agreenents, he is required under law to

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- April 23, 2001



offer the sane agreenment to any other contractor that wants to
use his [union] workers.

DR, JOHNSON remarked that Representative Crawford is m staking
this for a collective bargai ni ng agreenent.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCRD replied that it seens like a collective
bar gai ni ng agreenent to him

Nunber 1920

CHAIR MURKOWSKI referred to the article, "lnsurance Gap Causes
Big Shift in Health Cost,” from the Anchorage Daily News.
According to the article, when there are agreenents, the
uninsured pay the nost and patients with insurance plans are
charged the | east. She said:

The comment is that you' ve got these agreenents that
are being made to keep the health cost down, which is
what we're all trying to do. ... As a consequence of
the agreenents that are made in an effort to

maintain a steady flow of patients, the doctors find
thenselves scranbling to nmaintain their cash flow

They have to then charge the patients ... who are
uni nsured perhaps at a higher |evel than the
negoti ated agreenent that they have with their insured
pati ents.

CHAI R MJURKOWBKI asked Representative Crawford if that is what he
is referring to when he speaks of "pattern.”

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD answer ed, yes.

CHAIR MJURKOWNSBKI stated that she wonders how the bill would
affect the gap between the insured and the uninsured.

Nunmber 1998

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked Senator Kelly, if one of the
conditions is that the geographic service area consists of 40 or
fewer physicians, whether there are communities that would
qgqual i fy other than Anchorage, Fairbanks, and Juneau.

SENATOR KELLY reiterated that this is voluntary and limts the
nunber of people in an area who can cone together to negotiate.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- April 23, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE MEYER stated that his concern is to keep costs
down for his constituents. He remarked that sone of the fisca
notes seem high - the one from the admnistration being the
hi ghest - and asked Senator Kelly whether he agreed with them

SENATOR KELLY responded that the fiscal note for t he
adm ni stration should be zeroed out. He explained that there
were some problens with the fiscal notes in the Senate Finance
Comm ttee, because sone of the assunptions were "ridiculous."
He remarked that there is a great deal of opposition to this
bill with the adm nistration. Since it has never been properly
expl ai ned, he thinks the costs associated with it probably don’'t
make sense.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked Senator Kelly whether he agrees that
the enployees' costs would be anywhere from $35 to $88 per
nmont h.

SENATOR KELLY replied that Representative Meyer's question deals
W th sel f-insurance, which the bill does not address.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG  asked Senat or Kel l'y what hi s
understanding is of ERI SA versus non-ERI SA coverage plans in the
state. He al so asked whether this bill would not affect ERI SA
pl ans i n Al aska.

Number 2160

SENATOR KELLY responded that self-insured was specifically
exenpted [from the bill], and 95 percent of ERISA deals wth

sel f-insurance. He remarked that [this does not effect ERISA
plans in Alaskal], and referred to page 8, line 24, of the bill
whi ch reads:

(2) "health benefit plan" has the nmeaning given in AS
21.54.500, but does not include a health benefit plan
that is a self-insured health benefit plan.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if Senator Kelly has an estinmate
on how many people this would cover who aren't on ERI SA

SENATOR KELLY answered that it is currently about 10 percent.
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG remarked that according to Senator

Kelly's testinony, this wll only cover a small percentage of
the people in the state.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- April 23, 2001



SENATOR KELLY responded that wth renoving the self-insured,
t hat woul d be correct.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked, if this were inplenented, and
those positions in a larger market entered into negotiations
with Blue Cross - which would in essence increase fees - what
the inmpact would be by setting a pricing pattern.

SENATOR KELLY replied that he doesn't think this would increase
costs because it is voluntary. If the office of the Attorney
General sees that it is getting to be a problemwth fees going
up, the attorney general could veto that.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked Senator Kelly why he introduced
the bill if fees are not going to be increased.

Number 2241

SENATOR KELLY responded that there nmay be an insurance conpany
that requires a certain procedure. For exanple, Dr. Johnson
spoke about a patient who had chest pains and went to the
energency room The insurance conpany didn't want to pay for
t hat . These kind of issues, he said, are probably the nmjor
portion of what will be discussed in the negotiation. He added
that there nust be an agreenment before prices are even
di scussed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG remarked that he thinks those issues
were covered in House Bill [211] last year, including the
ability to enter into the contract negotiations, exclusive of
the fee issue.

JIM JORDAN, Executive Director, Al aska State Medical Association
(ASMA), stated, "sone [issues] but not all.”

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES remarked that it seens to him that the
State Action Doctrine is the linchpin of this |egislation. He
asked Senator Kelly whether he heard from Legislative Legal and
Research Services or from any other conpeting interests on
whether the State Action Doctrine will "hold water"” if sonmeone
decided to take this to court for antitrust [violations].

SENATOR KELLY responded that the State Action Doctrine was
created by the US. Suprenme Court, and this follows the
directives that were given. He stated that there has been
opinion fromthe AVA (Anerican Medical Association), and through

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- April 23, 2001



the process there have been |egal opinions on specific parts of
the bill, but not the entire bill.

Number 2359

CHAIR MURKOABKI stated that she noticed there were a couple of
letters to the FTC (Federal Trade Comm ssion) in the commttee
packets from Texas and Washi ngton, D.C. She asked whet her that
is sonmething that is done when seeking an exenption to the State
Action Doctri ne.

MR. JORDAN responded to previous questions. In reference to
Representative Crawford's renmarks about collective bargaining,
he said he does not believe this bill deals with that situation.
A major difference is that Representative Crawford, in his
col l ective bargaining situation, falls under the National Labor
Rel ations Act and has the ability to strike. There is no
ability to strike or to engage in any type of boycott in this
bill.

TAPE 01-65, SIDE B
Number 2470

MR. JORDAN continued, stating that, as Chair Mirkowski mentioned
earlier, Texas and Washington, D.C., are two entities that have
had experience wth this. He said there have been no court
cases having to do with ERISA preenption with such a |aw The
first "cut” in |ooking at whether ERISA preenpts the application
of state law is whether or not the state l|law inpacts the
enpl oyee benefit plan. Deci sions along those |ines have not
been made involving the State Action Doctri ne.

MR. JORDAN explained that as in npost antitrust situations, what

the law says is not determnant; it's what the facts actually
present as to whether or not there are violations in the federal
or state antitrust [|aws. The bill was patterned after the AMA

nodel, which was put together by the AMA's l|egal staff wth
counsel from an outside firm that specializes in antitrust
issues; their feeling is that it "passes nuster.” He stated
that there are two basic tests that any law providing this
exenption nust pass. First, there has to be a clearly
articulated policy by the state, and second, there has to be
active state oversight. He added that the bill that was passed
i n Washi ngton, D.C., was nodel ed by the AMVA

CHAI R MJURKONSKI asked whether there is any requirenent to get an
advi sory opinion in advance fromthe FTC

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- April 23, 2001



MR. JORDAN responded that physicians entering into this are
making a large "leap of faith" because they are depending on the
state to provide sufficient and active oversight. The FTC can
come in with "20-20 hindsight" and say the oversight wasn't
provi ded, thereby putting those physicians at risk for violation
of federal antitrust |aws.

Nunber 2249

CHAIR MJRKOWBKI remarked that the letters provided to [the
commttee] were apparently submtted to the FTC prior to
i npl enentation of their |egislation. She said she wasn't clear
whet her that was a requirenent or not.

MR. JORDAN responded that it is his understanding that it is not
a requirement; however, it is probably advisable.

CHAIR MJRKOWSKI asked M. Jordan iif he could coment on
Represent ati ve Rokeberg's concern about House Bill 211, and how
this does or doesn't tie in.

MR. JORDAN replied that there were itens in House Bill 211 that
dealt with certain physician services provisions; however, it by
no means was an exhaustive "laundry list" of those areas that
could be part of such an agreenent.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO stated that |ast year when House Bill 211

was in the conmttee he had sonme huge concerns. He said his
bi ggest concern was that he didn’t think the bill was needed,;
however, House Bill 211 passed and those rule changes don't take
effect until July 1 [2001]. He said it seens to him that

Wi thout giving enough time to see how they play out in the
market, [the legislature] is |looking for nore rule changes. He
explained that federal legislation HR 1304 was opposed by the
Federal Trade Conmm ssion, which issued a report saying it
t hought such an exenption would be "bad nedicine" for consumers.
The FTC also felt that both health insurance and provider
mar kets need to function conpetitively. Anot her area discussed
was the rationale that there wasn't the desired ability of the
antitrust exenption. He stated that there is a trenmendous
amount of concern on whether this is needed and what the overal
effect on the marketplace wll be.

Nunber 2102

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- April 23, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO remarked that he had asked M. Jordan what
the genesis of this bill was, and M. Jordan had commented that
a couple of doctors in Fairbanks got together, sonebody tipped
off the FTC, and [the doctors] got in trouble for talking about
these things. Representative Halcro said it appears to himthat
it was nore elaborate than that. According to the FTC web site,
there were 86 physicians, and the director of FTC s Bureau of
Competition said, "AHN [Al aska Healthcare Network, Inc.] nenbers
engaged in a conspiracy to set prices and hanper the entry of
managed care plans into the Fairbanks market, resulting in
higher prices and limted choices for physician services."
Representative Halcro asked where the need is for this piece of
| egi sl ati on.

MR JORDAN responded that the ASMA's interest in this
|l egislation as well as in other types of |l|egislation that
provide for a physician-friendly environnent is that they feel
there needs to be a friendly environnent to deal with what is a

| ooming problem with the physician workforce in Al aska. Ri ght
now, in excess of 51 percent of physicians in Al aska are over
the age of 51. Dr. Sam Cullison, an AMA delegate from

Washi ngton State, put together sonme statistics having to do with
physi ci an workforces in the Pacific Northwest, including Al aska.
The nunber of physicians in Al aska per 100,000 population was
about 170; conpares with the national average of 282. M.
Jordan noted that in Alaska there is no nedical school, there
are 10 slots per year in the WAM (Washi ngton, Al aska, Montana,
| daho Medical Education Program program and there is one
resi dency program Nationally, 70 percent of physicians com ng
out of training practice in the area where they do their
resi dency.

Number 1801

M CHAEL  HAUGEN, Executive Director, Al aska Physicians &
Surgeons, Inc., cane forth and added that he just read in the
AVMA newsl etter that even Canada has a higher per capita nunber
of physicians than Al aska. He stated that it is inportant for
Al aska to maintain as positive an atnosphere for physicians as

possi ble, and he thinks this bill wll do that. In response to
Representative Halcro's question concerning the [need for this
| egislation], he stated that this bill really relates to
contracts between doctors and insurance conpanies, and isn't an
issue the public may be aware of. He added that between the
ASVMA and [Alaska Physicians & Surgeons, Inc.] this is their
nunber one priority. There is an enornous anount of paranoia

after what happened in Fairbanks. He stated that he thinks the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- April 23, 2001



guestion to ask is, "At  what poi nt is this insurance
consolidation going to be enough so that effectively we have a
single paired system and at that point how [do] the doctors
advocate for their patients?"

MR HAUGEN st at ed:

W just feel that ... all [the doctors] really want is
the opportunity to get together and discuss sone of
these nonfee-related terns as well as [potential]
fees. And when | talk about fees, I'mreally talking
about maybe just holding the line on what they're
currently getting. There's a constant desire on the

part of the insurance conpanies [to] ratchet down
costs. So, we may not be tal king about fee increases
or cost increases from the physician standpoint; we
may sinply be trying to tread water. ... Again, the
attorney general has absolute authority to say no.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO referenced a newspaper article dated
August 1, 2000, from the Juneau Enpire that discusses the
heal t hcare needs expanding to nmeet the need in Al aska. He read:

More doctors are practicing in Alaska now than in
previ ous years. The nunmber of licensed nedical
doctors in Alaska grew from 1,419 active licenses in
fiscal [year] "95 to 1,810 in fiscal [year] 1999. (ne
of the reasons for that is that people are fleeing the
managed care systemin [the] Lower 48. Doctors noving
to Alaska prefer the fee-for-service rather than
managed care procedures.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said this was his argunment |ast year with
House Bill 211. The argunment for both bills is that doctors are
at a disadvantage in the marketplace, yet all of the facts seem
to point in the other direction.

Nunmber 1689

MR. JORDAN responded that the nunbers [Representative Hal cro
guot ed] probably came from the Dvision of COccupational
Licensing, while the nunmbers from Dr. Cullison cane from the
Al aska State Medical Association's database. He said the
dat abase, from the end of Decenber 2000, shows 1,036 physicians
practicing in Alaska, up from 1,024 from Decenber 1999. He
added that he thinks sonme of the nunber of "managed-care
ref ugees” has gotten snaller.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- April 23, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Jordan whether his estinmate of
the nunber of doctors includes whose with the Indian Health
Service or Public Health Service.

MR JORDAN answered that [the nunbers] indicate private
practice.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG referred to his earlier question about
the inpacts on non-ERI SA people. He stated that he has cone to
the conclusion that Al aska probably has the smallest anmount of
uni nsured people in the country. He added that if this bill is
inplenented it will set a pricing pattern. He remarked that he
woul d have nore confort with this legislation if a year were
given to inplenent House Bill 211

Nunber 1437

MR. JORDAN responded that this wll only inpact the insured
pl ans. He stated that he expects, down the road, that there
will be further delineation in the courts having to do wth

ERI SA preenption. That will clarify whether or not self-insured
pl ans, w thout being preenpted by ERISA, will be inpacted by a
bill like this. He remarked that the courts have been noving in
the direction of giving the states, as well as sone
adm nistrative agencies, nore authority in that area. For
exanple, the Departnment of Labor came up with a new definition
of multiple enployer welfare associations (MEWAS). He said he
has heard it theorized that 61 percent of the Fortune 500
conpanies will be included as a MEWA. The significance is that
MEWAs are subject to state regul ations. As to the timng, he
stated that realistically it wll take a year followng the
effective date of the bill for regulations to be drafted. He
added that it wll probably be another year before a group of
physi ci ans get together to negotiate.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked what the latest word is on the
federal Patients Bill of Rights, and any possible inpact or
expansion of the state's ability to enforce regulations on these
groups.

MR. JORDAN answered that the only information he has is that it
is enbroiled in presidential politics.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG commented that he recalls that the
commttee is very adroit at providing delayed effective dates on

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- April 23, 2001



| egislation, with the ability to wite the regulations in the
bill.

Nunber 1277

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked, if SB 37 passes and the doctors use
it without an advisory opinion from the FTC, and then the bill
is ruled unconstitutional, whether there are any safety nets in
the legislation that would cover, for exanple, the doctors who

were "crucified" in Fairbanks. He stated that only the three
geographi cal areas [Anchorage, Juneau, and Fairbanks] can use
this bill, and it seens as if only one insurance conpany can be
a player - Blue Cross. He asked what other carriers would be in
pl ay. He remarked that he is curious about the statenent that
[ Alaska] is not conpetitive. He said it sounds as if this
| egislation has only been done in one state and one district.
He asked, if no other states have done this, what is making

[ Alaska] so nonconpetitive that this legislation alone would
make [ Al aska] as conpetitive as other states.

MR. JORDAN answered, first, that there is no safety net. He
stated that keeping in mnd that it is the physicians who are at
risk when entering into this, presumably, they wll have

appropriate legal help. Second, it may or may not be true that
this would inpact only one insurance conpany, and he thinks that
wi |l depend on the particular |ocation. He added that he thinks
the Matanuska-Susitna area is the fourth geographic area.
Third, he clarified that Texas is the only place where this has
been i npl enent ed. He stated that it is his feeling that
[ Alaska] needs to be "out front" about this and other issues
i nvol ving a physician-friendly environnent.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked, if this legislation passes, is ruled
to be unconstitutional, and there is no safety net for doctors,
how being "out front”" would nake [Al aska] nore physician-
friendly, without an advisory opinion fromthe FTC.

Number 1017

MR. HAUGEN responded that currently, he thinks physicians feel
that because of what happened in Fairbanks and the general
clinmate of not being able to talk with each other, this is a
relatively unfriendly state. He stated that the physicians [at
the ASMA] feel that if they are allowed to talk to each other
about these contracts wthout the threat of being sued, the
general environnment for healthcare in Alaska wll inprove. [The
doctors] are wlling to take the risk that the inplenented

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- April 23, 2001



regul ations may be found in violation of the |aw It is in the
physi ci ans' vested interest to nmake sure the attorney general

wites the regulations so that they are protected. He stated
that he suspects that the ASMA's legal counsel wll be
submtting substantial input to the attorney general on what
shoul d constitute adequate state oversight. He added that the
probable future head of the US. Departnent of Justice's
antitrust division was instrunental in witing one of these

bills, and President Bush signed one of these bills.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES stated that it seens to himthat the vested
interest of the doctors would be to have the advisory opinion
bef or ehand.

MR. HAUGEN enphasized that the AMA's |egal counsel, the Texas
Medi cal Association's |egal counsel, the probable future head of
the antitrust division of the U S. Departnent if Justice, and

the ASMA's |egal counsel have reviewed this. The attorney
general of the State of Alaska gets to wite these regul ations
and can seek whatever counsel is needed. He remarked that

Representative Halcro referred to an article that outlined what
happened in Fairbanks, and stated that after the anonynous phone
call was submtted to the FTC, the group of doctors "were off to
the legal races." After six figures in legal fees, they decided
to "throwin the towel." He said he believes the consent decree
on the wording is boilerplate and is the mninmum the FTC
requires to get off of a potential defendant's "back."

CHAIR MJRKOMBKI stated that she would like to hear how this
woul d al so benefit the consuner.

Number 0680

MR. HAUGEN answered that he thinks its nost direct benefit for
consuners is that it wll allow physicians as a group to go to
an insurance carrier and start to identify where the

inefficiencies in the systemare. He stated that nenbers of his
board see incredible duplication of services that are required
because the doctors' ability to comruni cate anongst thenselves
to identify these overuses of services is |[imted. WMny nenbers
have said that there are better, cheaper ways of doing this for
the patients. Anot her exanple, he said, is nedical necessity,
an issue that can only be discussed between a carrier and snall
groups of physicians. If the carrier has a firm idea of what
medi cal necessity is, there is very little a doctor can do;
that's a patient-centered issue of whether a service wll be
covered or not. He noted that this refers to nonfee issues.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- April 23, 2001



CHAI R MURKOWBKI stated that she thinks it is easier to grasp the
benefits to the consuner when talking about the nonfee-rel ated
I ssues. However, when the discussion is about the specific
fees, she said she does not wunderstand how the consuner
benefits.

MR. HAUGEN explained that he was told through the executive
director of the group [of physicians] in Fairbanks that their
| egal counsel, M. Doug Ross (ph), was told by the FTC
investigators that the FTC s opinion regarding the distinction

between nonfee- and fee-related issues was noot. The FTC s
position was that if a nonfee-related item in a contract
affected costs, it was effectively a price issue. The feeling
when drafting this bill was if the FTC was going to cone after

[the physicians] about nonfee- or fee-related issues, both
shoul d be incl uded.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI comrented that that raises an interesting point,
because as it is set up now, the nonfee-related issues have to
be resolved before addressing the fee-related issues. However ,
according to M. Haugen, there is probably a logical tie-in with
alnmost all the nonfee-related issues that wll have sone
i nfluence on the fees ultimately.

MR. HAUGEN remarked that it may not relate to fees directly, but
it my relate to costs. For exanple, if "nedical necessity” is
defined liberally, there may be nmany nore procedures an insurer
woul d have to include under a plan.

Nunber 0494

SENATOR KELLY referred to the statenent by M. Haugen that the
FTC had said the difference between fees and terns was noot, and
stated that that is the nost "crying" public benefit he could
think of. At that point, physicians could not advocate as a
group with any kind of narket power for their patients. He
expressed that that is the essence of this bill

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO remarked that this is addressing those
heal t hcare providers that cover non-ERISA plans, which is a
relatively small portion of the insurance pool. He said this
remnds of him of two years ago when the Mental Health Parity
Task Force gave a presentation and stated that the |egislature
should require that all policies have nental health coverage.
They were just talking about non-ERISA, which are snall
enpl oyers that are struggling to provide health coverage for

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- April 23, 2001



their enpl oyees. He remarked that if his carrier's costs
i ncrease, he will have to absorb those cost.

MR. HAUGEN responded that the State of Alaska has no power to
affect ERI SA plans. That automatically shrinks the pool.

MR. JORDAN stated that he thinks one of the hopes is that a
couple of things w Il happen: one, that there will be nore
federal court cases allowng state regulation to inpact the
areas that are thought to be hands off, and two, that there wll
be groups of self-insured people who may want to negoti ate.

TAPE 01-66, SIDE A
Number 0018

LAURA WALDEN testified via teleconference on behalf of the
Nul ai n Si sterhood, and stated that she is a consumer as well as
an advocate for patients. She remarked that she sees this bill
as being very destructive as far as the consunmer is concerned.
If doctors can set the fee scales, which the consuners are
already having a problem neeting, that puts those fees out of
the reach of the consuners. She stated that she thinks the
| egi slature should take a good look at how this is going to
affect people who do not have insurance. She suggested that
[the commttee] not look at this bill, but at why the doctors
have to be on a contract, which interferes with the physicians'
giving proper care to the patients. The insurance conpani es,
she said, are already dictating to the doctor what he or she can
and cannot do.

CLYDE "ED' SN FFEN, Assistant Attorney General, Fair Business
Practices Section, Cvil D vision (Anchorage), Departnment of
Law, testified via teleconference. He stated that the
Departnent of Law still has serious concerns with SB 37 for a
variety of reasons. The State Action Doctrine has always been a
concern. He explained that the State Action Doctrine is
sonet hing that has been set by the U S. Suprene Court, and there
are cases starting in the early '80s defining what that doctrine
needs to do in order to insulate state activity from antitrust
scrutiny. He stated that there are tw elenents to the
doctri ne. One, there needs to be a clearly expressed state
policy favoring the type of anticonpetitive behavior, and two,
there needs to be active state supervision over the process. He
remarked that it is this second reason that [the Departnent of
Law] thinks is mssing from SB 37.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- April 23, 2001



MR. SN FFEN explained how SB 37 would work in reality. He
remarked that on page 2, line 10, it allows 100 percent of the
physicians in any area to get together and talk about things;
there is no 30 percent restriction on the ability of physicians,
by thenselves, to get together and talk. The only tinme the
state has an opportunity to cone into the process is after an
aut horized third-party representative has been selected by the
physi ci an. The third-party representative is not required to
give very nmuch information to the attorney general before those
negoti ations are required to proceed. The attorney general, he
said, can only stop those negotiations wunder very I|imted
ci rcunst ances, which are set out on page 5, lines 23 to 29. He
stated that the level of active state supervision that [the
Departnment of Law] believes the State Action Doctrine requires
isn't present in the bill

MR. SNI FFEN renmarked that with the price negotiations the role
of the attorney general is reduced to reviewing contracts that
have been proposed. There is no involvenent of the attorney
general in the negotiation process itself. He remarked that
[the Departnment of Law] is synpathetic with the doctors, if they
really don’t have the kinds of negotiating power that they would
like to have with the insurance conpanies, but this bill clearly
brings the balance way over to the other side, to the point
wher e perhaps the insurance conpani es are at a di sadvant age.

Number 0813

MR. SNIFFEN, in response to comments nade earlier, stated that
he doesn't think there was any testinony about how this bill

will correct any perceived flaws in the system Currently,
physi cians can negotiate wth insurance conpanies and health
benefit plans on an individual basis. He remarked that there

are also opportunities under different nodels that the FTC has
recognized for clinically integrated enterprises to negotiate
collectively. Another problem [the Departnment of Law] has with
the bill is the notion that there is substantial market power.
When an insurance conpany has a 15 percent share of the market,
this presunption doesn't seemto be based on reality. He stated
that narket power is a very conplicated thing and requires the
anal ysis of many different factors. He remarked that he is not
sure that this bill allows the attorney general to make that
initial determnation. |If it does, if should be clarified.

MR.  SNIFFEN continued, stating that the definition of a

geographic area in this bill is fairly vague, and could be
tightened up so that it is clearer. Finally, he conmented that

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- April 23, 2001



ERISA is not preenpted by this bill. He said he read the
definition of "health benefit plan® in the bill, and the bill
does exclude self-insured plans, which mght take care of a |ot
of the ERISA plans, but there are other ERISA plans that may not
be self-insured that could also be subject to the definition of
"health benefit plan." He stated that there was sone testinony
about how the State Action Doctrine could perhaps exenpt sone of
the ERI SA issues; however, preenption is not the sane as the
State Action Doctrine.

CHAIR MJRKOWBKI asked M. Sniffen whether he deals wth
antitrust issues on a general basis.

MR. SNI FFEN answer ed, vyes.
Number 0976

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked whether going to the FTC with the shell of
SB 37 in advance of enactnent is appropriate or generally done.

MR. SNI FFEN responded that it is sonmething that [the Departnent
of Law] would have liked to have done in this case. He noted
that [the departnent] did submt information with sone witten
comments on the FTC s position on the Texas and the Washi ngton,
D.C., legislation, and the FTC did testify against those bills.
The attorney general in Texas testified strongly against the
Texas | egi sl ation.

CHAIR MJURKOWSKI stated that she has |ooked at what has been
presented in ternms of what constitutes active state supervision,
and it sounds as if in order to neet the requirenents of that,
nore involvenent is better. She asked M. Sniffen how [the
comittee] can nake it so that there is active state
supervi si on.

MR. SNIFFEN responded that [the departnent] submtted the
statutes and regulations from Washington [State], because [the
departnment] thinks the process Washi ngton has established cones
closest to satisfying the State Action Doctrine. He expl ai ned
how the process works in Alaska right now with the Regulatory
Comm ssi on of Al aska. There are utilities with nonopoly power,
but that power is offset by regulatory review of prices and
contracts through a commssion that has hearings and takes
t esti nony. Washington has a system that doesn’'t allow
negotiations of price terns at all. As for non-price terns,
there is a system in place that goes through the Wshington

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- April 23, 2001



Departnent of Health, which works wth the Ofice of the
Attorney Ceneral to receive and review applications.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked M. Sniffen whether he has been
involved with following the bill on the Senate side.

MR Sniffen answered that he has.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO stated that in a letter of opposition [in
the commttee packets], a lady wote that the version from the
[ Senate] Labor and Conmmerce Standing Committee was far nore
acceptable to her. That version, in addition to a sunset
cl ause, had |anguage that provided for review and conment by
interested parties. It also stated that the attorney general
must include a review of any harm to consunmers or non-physician
providers that mght be contained in any contract. He stated
that is seens to him that the version that canme out of the
Senate Labor and Commerce Standing Conmmttee had a little bit
nore consumer protection. He asked M. Sniffen if he could
speak to that.

Number 1261

MR. SNI FFEN responded that he thinks the Senate version did have
some provisions that allowed for review of the contracts by
interested parties. Those provisions were changed sonewhat in
t he Senate Finance Conmittee.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked if there has ever been a point in
time in this bill's process when the Departnment of Law had felt
it would be acceptable.

MR. SNl FFEN answered that there hasn't.

CHAIR MURKOWBKI stated that one of the protections the sponsor
is asserting is that this would not allow for a group of doctors
to strike or engage in a boycott. She said as she read the
bill, it does indicate, with regard to the non-price terns, that
conpeting physicians may not engage in a boycott [subsection (a)
on page 2]; it doesn't say anything about strikes. That
| anguage is not included anywhere else in the bill. However
she said she reads subsection (a) as being specific to
subsection (a) only. She remarked that she does not have the
assurance that the provision that conpeting physicians cannot
conpete in a boycott or strike is included in the price terns.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- April 23, 2001



MR. SNIFFEN remarked that there is not a simlar restriction
under the price section, page 3, line 18, subsection (d), as
there is in the non-price section. He stated that it remains
one of [the departnent's] nmain concerns.

Nunber 1422

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked whether or not this has been addressed at
sone point, and what the purpose was for not having the boycott
or strike language in the price terns area.

MR. SNl FFEN responded that he doesn’t know why they weren't
i ncl uded.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked M. Sniffen if he was famliar with
the FTC s action on the position in Fairbanks.

MR. SNl FFEN answered that he was not that famliar with it.
REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO stated that one of the conplaints the FTC

alleged was that through <certain actions these doctors
"succeeded blocking the entry of several health plans into the

Fai r banks area and substantially delayed others." He remarked
that basically, through their actions, it was a de facto
boycott.

MR. SNI FFEN responded that that is what he understood as well.

Nunber 1740

BOB LOHR, Director, Division of Insurance, Department  of
Communi ty and Econom ¢ Devel opnent, testified Vi a
t el econf erence. He stated that the division has two concerns
with SB 37. The first is the cost to Al askans and the second is
the inpact on the insurance narket. In terns of the cost

concerns, he said all of the studies regarding legislation |ike
SB 37 predict an increase in the cost of healthcare and

therefore of health insurance, if physicians are allowed to
collectively negotiate. Increased costs would nean nore
uni nsured Al askans and reduced benefits for others. Smal |

enpl oyers and individuals are particularly vul nerabl e.

MR. LOHR explained, in terns of the insurance nmarket concern,
that this legislation was devel oped in response to nanaged care
organi zations, primarily HMOs [heal th mai ntenance organi zati ons]
and healthcare providers in the Lower 48. Al aska does not have
any HMOs at this tinme, and the nunmber of health insurers and

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 26- April 23, 2001



their market shares have renmained relatively stable over the

past six years. He stated that with the exception of the
entrance and then exit of enployers' health [plans], the big
players in 1994 are still the big players in the health
i nsurance nmarket today. The health insurance market in Al aska
is small, which makes it difficult for new insurers to cone into
the market and operate profitably. He remarked that there has

been testinmony in other conmmttees as well as today that this
m ght attract additional insurers to the market; however, the
insurers that [the division] has talked to have not indicated
that would be the case. They have other barriers to entry into

the Alaska market such as its snall size and its relative
r enot eness. He concluded that the division believes that if
this bill acconplishes what its supporters seek to acconplish,
it will increase the cost of health insurance, increase the

nunber of wuninsured Alaskans, and hurt an already vulnerable
heal t h i nsurance market.

MR. LOHR added that he thinks the remark made about the nunber
of doctors per 100,000 being substantially |lower in Alaska than
in other markets is a concern from the point of view of cost,
because basic econom cs suggest that a shortage of supply would
inflate the cost and the price of the physician services. A
proposal to allow increased fees to be negotiated probably seens
to go the wong direction fromthe point of view of that market
t endency.

Number 1740

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked what the latest count is on the
nunber of non-ERlI SA-covered individuals in terns of the total
i nsurance market in Al aska.

KATI E CAVPBELL, Life and Health Actuary, D vision of Insurance,
Departnent of Community and Econom c Devel opnent, cane forth and
responded that |[the division] has the nobst recent health
i nsurance survey, but it does not survey to find out who is
sel f-funded. She added that [the division] has worked with [the
Department of Health & Social Services] on portions of its
report based on federal surveys.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that he would guess [the nunber
of non-ERI SA-covered individuals] 1is probably less than 20
percent but could be nore than 5 or 10 percent.

MR, LOHR remarked that he believes 10 percent would be a
bal | park figure.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -27- April 23, 2001



Number 1825

CHAIR MJURKOWBKI stated that she read a figure of sonewhere
between 15 to 30 percent increase in the cost of insurance. She
asked if those were Al aska's figures.

MR. LOHR responded that there has not been a study of Al aska
specifically. However, the figure in the national study | ooking
at HR 1304 canme up with a range of cost increases between 5
and 13 percent.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked M. Lohr if he foresees other
i nsurance carriers, other than Blue Cross, that would fall into
this percentage market share of 15 percent in any comunity.

MR LOHR referred to page 8, lines 24 and 25, and stated that
with the choice of definition for "health benefit plan", it may
effectively be that neither Aetna nor Blue Cross is covered by
the provisions of this bill

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked whether that is because Blue Cross
is nonprofit and regul ated under a different statute.

Number 1965

M5. CAMPBELL responded that it has to do with the fact that a
"health benefit plan" under chapter 54 of [Alaska's] statutes is
defined as an "enployee welfare benefit plan", which is a
specific enployer plan and not an insurance conpany. She added
that Blue Cross is under a different statute.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that that was his point;
therefore, it is not even covered by this bill

M5. CAMPBELL responded that the "health benefit plan” definition
doesn't reference an insurance conpany either.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked how it would be determned on a
communi ty-by-community basis who has the mpjority of market
share.

MR. LOHR answered that "geographic service area" is a defined

termin the bill, and it seens to focus on the geographic area
of the physician.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 28- April 23, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked whether [the division] collects the
i nformati on by geographic areas.

M5. CAMPBELL answered no, for insurance conpanies it is just the
total premumfor the state. Therefore, it would be information
[the division] would have to coll ect.

Number 2102

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG conmmented that it has taken six years
and "we" still can’t figure out how many people are insured and
uninsured in the state, and now the Division of Insurance is
supposed to figure who has 15 percent market share in a regiona
area. He stated that it's a real "junp shift."

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked whether [the division] has any
suggestions to nmake this bill doable.

MR. LOHR responded that he thinks Representative Rokeberg hit on
a point that this is a bill that needs sone tine to determne
its actual need and whether it wll be effective. He added that
no plan has yet been approved under Texas; as a result, there is
no track record.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI referred to her earlier question about boycotts.
She stated that in subsection (a) on page 2, it states that
[ physicians] can't engage in a boycott for nonprice ternms, but
that sanme provision is absent when discussing price terns. She
asked Kristopher Knauss, staff to Senator Kelly, if that has
been a subject of discussion in other commttee hearings, and
whet her it is absent for a reason.

KRI STOPHER KNAUSS, Staff to Senator Pete Kelly, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, responded that it is his wunderstanding that the
sponsor's intent was to keep it throughout the bill. The fees
were taken out by the Senate Finance Committee. He added t hat
this discussion [on boycotts] has not conme up throughout the
comm ttee di scussions on the Senate side.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked why the fees were taken out in the
Senat e Finance Committee.

MR. KNAUSS explained that the fees have been restructured so
that both parties have to cone together to nmeet on the service
I ssues. Once those are agreed upon by both parties, they can
then negotiate specifically on fees. Basically, the process is
tiered.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -29- April 23, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked what the reasoni ng was behind taking
out the sunset cl ause.

MR. KNAUSS responded that he thinks Senator Kelly's thought was
that since there were so many safeguards added throughout the
| egi sl ative process, sone of the insurance conpanies would wait
the five years out and not engage in any negoti ati ons.

[ SB 37 was hel d over. ]

CHAI R MJRKOASBKI called for an at-ease at 5:45 p.m  The neeting
was called back to order at 5:46 p.m

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:47 p.m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 30- April 23, 2001



